MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

HELD AT THE KENNINGTON VILLAGE
CENTRE, KENNINGTON ON
MONDAY, 1ST AUGUST 2005 AT 6.30 PM

Open to the Public, including the Press

PRESENT:

MEMBERS: Councillor Sylvia Patterson (Chair), Terry Quinlan (Vice-Chair), Matthew Barber, Terry Cox, Tony de-Vere, Richard Gibson, Peter Jones, Monica Lovatt, Julie Mayhew-Archer, Briony Newport, Jerry Patterson, Margaret Turner and John Woodford.

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS: Councillor Mary de-Vere for Councillor Richard Farrell and Councillor Melinda Tilley for Councillor Pam Westwood.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: Steve Culliford, Martin Deans, Rodger Hood and Stuart Walker.

NUMBER OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: 11

DC.71 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The attendance of Substitute Members who had been authorised to attend in accordance with the provisions of Standing Order 17(1) were recorded, as referred to above, with apologies for absence having been received from Councillors Roger Cox, Richard Farrell, Jenny Hannaby, and Pam Westwood.

DC.72 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 4 July 2005 were adopted and signed as a correct record.

DC.73 URGENT BUSINESS AND CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chair reminded Councillors and members of the public that all mobile phones should be switched off during the meeting.

The Chair announced that item 20, an application relating to 75-77 Northcourt Road, Abingdon (ABG/17389/1) had been withdrawn from the agenda.

The Chair also announced that the next scheduled meeting of the Committee on Monday 15 August 2005 had been cancelled due to the lack of planning applications requiring Members' attention for the South area.

DC.74 STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC UNDER STANDING ORDER 33

It was noted that five members of the public had each given notice that they wished to make a statement at the meeting. However, one member of the public had withdrawn their request to speak.

DC.75 MATERIALS

The Committee considered materials for two developments.

By 14 votes to nil with 1 abstention it was

RESOLVED

(a) that in relation to application ABG/17298/3 at Marcham Road, Abingdon materials be: -

(i) Refused as follows: -

Bricks - WDF Marlow Red and Colville Red

Render - Pewter Grey K-Rend with black or anthracite mastic

Glazing - Kalwall Panel

(ii) Approved as follows: -

Glazing - Pilkington Planar Glazing or Kalwall Panel

(b) that in relation to application KEN/16245/1-D at Cranbrook House, Kennington the following materials be refused:-

Bricks - Consolidated Broadlands Fallow Blend and Consolidated Berkeley Orange Grove Multi

Tile - Russell Double Roman in peat brown

DC.76 APPEALS

The Committee received and considered an agenda report which advised of one appeal which had been lodged, one which had been allowed and four which had been dismissed. A further three appeals had been withdrawn.

RESOLVED

that the agenda report be received.

DC.77 FORTHCOMING PUBLIC INQUIRIES AND HEARINGS

The Committee received and considered an agenda report, which advised of four forthcoming Public Inquiries and eleven Hearings.

RESOLVED

that the agenda report be received.

DC.78 TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (LONGWORTH) NO 4 2005

The Committee received and considered report 56/05 of the Landscape Officer (Arboriculture) regarding a proposed Tree Preservation Order at Longworth. During the latter part of last year the officer had been contacted by local residents who were concerned about the potential loss of trees in fields adjacent to the A420 and Pine Woods Road, Longworth due to the possibility of sand being extracted from the land. In January 2005, the officer visited the site and identified several hedgerows containing a number of visually significant trees. A Tree Preservation Order was made to protect these trees. Objections to the Order had been received from Hanson Aggregates of Lechlade. The officer sought confirmation from the Committee that if permission was given to extract sand from the fields adjacent to the trees, consideration was given to the trees during the process so that they remained in good health and would continue to provide a visual amenity for many years to come. The Committee considered that the Order should be confirmed to secure the trees' protection.

By 15 votes to nil it was

RESOLVED

that the Tree Preservation Order (Longworth) No.4 2005 be confirmed and that a slightly modified plan be made to correct the plotting error.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee received and consider report 55/05 of the Assistant Director (Planning) detailing planning applications, the decisions of which are recorded below. Applications where members of the public had given notice that they wished to speak were considered first.

DC.79 <u>ABG/361/14 - CHANGE OF USE FROM WOODWORKING FACILITY TO FUNERAL</u> SERVICES DEPOT. UNIT 1, AREA A, RADLEY ROAD INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, ABINGDON

Mr Churchman, the applicant's agent, had indicated that he wished to make a statement to the meeting but had later withdrawn his request to do so.

Further to the report, the Committee was advised that the Town Council had raised no objection to the application but requested that a limit was placed on noise emanating from the refrigeration unit. It was also reported that the County Engineer had raised no objection to the application.

The Committee considered that the application was acceptable and would cause less noise disturbance than the previous use of a woodworking facility.

By 15 votes to nil it was

RESOLVED

that application ABG/361/14 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report.

DC.80 FRI/2207/52 - CHANGE OF USE TO ALLOW PUBLIC ACCESS TO TRAFALGAR COMMEMORATIVE WOODLAND WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING AND PICNIC AREA, MILLETS FARM, KINGSTON ROAD, FRILFORD

Further to the report, it was confirmed that the officer's recommendation was to delegate approval of the application, subject to conditions.

The Committee supported the application, subject to the conditions to control the site and the details of the car parking and access treatment and landscaping.

By 15 votes to nil it was

RESOLVED

that authority to approve application FRI/2207/52 be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Committee, subject to conditions including details of the access drive and car park, the landscaping of the car park, the design of the information boards, the extended pedestrian route to the site, and any surfacing work to the circular path.

DC.81 CUM/4340/18 AND /19-LB – EXTENSION TO EXISTING PUB PREMISES, OUTBUILDINGS AND CAR PARK AND ALTERATIONS TO GARDEN AND DECKING. ALTERATIONS TO OUTBUILDINGS. REMOVAL OF INTERNAL WALL. ALTERATIONS TO FORM DISABLED FACILITY. INSTALLATION OF WALK-IN REFRIDGERATOR. BEAR AND RAGGED STAFF, CUMNOR.

Further to the report, the officer suggested an additional condition regarding the internal lighting of the link and external lighting in the grounds.

Mr Russell, the applicant's agent, made a statement in support of the application. He referred to changes that had been made to take on board the comments raised by English Heritage and the Parish Council. The application was largely to meet the requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act. Careful consideration had been given to the design, bearing in mind the property was Listed and in a Conservation Area. He pointed to there being no objections from local residents or the highways authority.

Members suggested that care should be taken in the choice of materials and suggested oak was used on the external details rather than plastic. Also, it was requested that care should be taken over boundary treatment, i.e. that no larch-lap fencing should be used. It was noted that oak and clear glass would be used for the link building.

With regard to the Listed Building application, it was noted that because the building was Grade II Star Listed this would require the Secretary of State's approval before final approval by the officers in consultation with the Chair or Vice Chair under delegated authority.

By 15 votes to nil it was

RESOLVED

- (a) that application CUM/4340/18 be approved, subject to the conditions set out in the report, together with additional conditions regarding the internal lighting of the link and external lighting in the grounds, and boundary treatment; and
- (b) that authority be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chair or Vice-Chair of the Committee to approve application CUM/4340/19-LB, subject to:-
 - (i) the referral of the application to the Secretary of State; and
 - (ii) the conditions as set out in the report.

DC.82 NHI/7093/1 – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING. ERECTION OF FIVE FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING. 62 YARNELLS HILL, NORTH HINKSEY

Further to the report, it was noted that the applicant had appealed against the Council's nondetermination of the application within the eight week period. Therefore, the Committee was recommended to approve the suggested reason for refusal set out in the report as the reason for refusal to defend the appeal.

Members supported the reason for refusal as accurately reflecting the Committee's debate at the meeting when the application was previously considered.

By 11 votes to 4 it was

RESOLVED

that the reason for refusal set out in the report be used to defend the appeal into application NHI/7093/1.

DC.83 <u>ABG/10495/3 – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE AND UTILITY ROOM. ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION, EXTENSION TO FRONT AND CONSERVATORY TO REAR.</u> (RE-SUBMISSION). 160, SOUTH AVENUE, ABINGDON.

Mr Pitt-Pulford made a statement objecting to the application. He was not opposed to his neighbours extending their house but he did object to the design of the proposed extension. He considered that it would be too close to his property at the rear of the two houses and the proposed use of hanging facia tiles could pose a danger in high winds. He also objected to overlooking from the bedroom window of the proposed extension and requested that this contained frosted glass.

Although some Members had sympathy with the objector, they noted that the proposed extension met the Council's design guide. On the advice of the officers, Members also considered that the funnelling effect of the two properties was not a material planning consideration and Members considered that frosted glass in the bedroom window would be an unreasonable condition.

By 15 votes to nil it was

RESOLVED

that application ABG/10495/3 be approved, subject to the conditions set out in the report.

DC.84 GAR/13326/2 – RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION FOR CONVERSION OF FARM BUILDING TO COMMERCIAL STORAGE AND OFFICES, CHADWICKS FARM, GARFORD

Mr Organ, on behalf of Garford Parish Meeting, made a statement objecting to the application, reinforcing concerns already set out in the report. He emphasised the problems further traffic would cause if traffic using this site was not diverted away from the village. He believed that a further traffic increase was unsustainable on the standard of roads through the village. Problems already existed with large, heavy lorries on the narrow roads where there were few passing places and poor junctions.

Mr Cardy, of the business occupying the application site, made a statement in support of the application. He reported that the applicants understood their responsibilities to the local community and asked for deliveries to be routed away from the village to reduce traffic disturbance. He reported on the success of the business and stated that it employed local people, all of whom lived in the District.

The Local Member reported that, although no local residents had formally objected to the application, he had attended three Parish Meetings where there was considerable concern over this application adding to the traffic problems in Garford village. He believed that the problems were partly caused by heavy lorries visiting nearby Cobweb Farm. The County Council's imposition of a weight limit on the village roads had little impact. Although the business at Chadwicks Farm was doing its best to re-route traffic away from the village, he recognised that this did not always work. He expressed concern at the possible growth of the business at this site. He believed that this was the wrong location for an expanding use requiring further heavy goods traffic. He expressed concern that a routing agreement would be enforceable.

Other Members also considered that a routing agreement would not work. However, it was noted that the County Engineer had not objected to the application, subject to conditions. Members considered he possibility of obtaining a second opinion but noted that any independent consultant was likely to use the same baseline information on previous traffic generation from the site as was used by the County Engineer. This suggestion was therefore not pursued.

By 9 votes to 3 with 3 abstentions it was

RESOLVED

that application GAR/13326/2 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report.

DC.85 <u>ABG/17389/1 – ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY FRONT EXTENSION AND REAR</u> CONSERVATORY, 83 FARM ROAD, ABINGDON

The Committee noted that the application had resulted in no objections but was brought before Members as the applicant was a member of staff.

By 15 votes to nil it was

RESOLVED

that application ABG/17389/1 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report.

DC.86 NHI/18957/1 - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING GARAGE. ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSION TO FORM FOUR FLATS AND ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING ACCESS. 44 MONTAGU ROAD, BOTLEY

Some concern was expressed by one of the Local Members that the proposal amounted to overdevelopment of the site but on the advice of the officers she found no reason to refuse the application.

By 15 votes to nil it was

RESOLVED

that application NHI/18957/1 be approved subject to the conditions set out in the report.

DC.87 <u>ABG/19126-X – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING HOUSES AND CONSTRUCTION OF 25 DWELLINGS, 75 – 77 NORTHCOURT ROAD, ABINGDON</u>

It was noted that this application had been withdrawn from the agenda.

Exempt Information Under Section 100(4) of the Local Government Act 1972

None.

The meeting rose at 8.18 pm